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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK
VICTOR MALLH, et. al.
3017 43rd Street, Apt. 3F
Astoria, New York 11103,

)
)
)
)
Plaintiff, on his own behalf
)
And similarly-situated others,
)
)
v.
)
)
APPLE INC.
)
1 Infinite Loop
)
Cupertino, CA 95104
)
)
Serve Upon:
)
CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY
)
)
Defendant.
)
_______________________________________________ )

Case No.: 18-51

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND JURY TRIAL DEMAND
COMES NOW THE PLAINTIFF, on behalf of himself and similarly situated
others, sues the Defendant Apple Inc. (“Defendant” or “Apple”) and alleges the
following:
NATURE OF THE CASE
1. Plaintiff

Victor

Mallh

brings

this

action,

inter

alia,

to

address

misrepresentations and omissions made by Defendant Apple Inc. in connection with
its iPhone software updates. The Plaintiff and similarly situated others (“Plaintiffs”)
bring this matter to address Apple’s failure in its duty to warn iPhone SE, iPhone 6,
iPhone 6s, iPhone 6s Plus, iPhone 7, and iPhone 7 Plus, (collectively, “older
iPhones”) users such as the Plaintiffs that certain iOS updates could negatively and
significantly impact iPhone performance. Plaintiffs were harmed when the software
1
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on their iPhones was updated to any of the following: iOS 10.2.11; iOS 10.32; iOS
10.3.13; iOS 10.3.24; iOS 10.3.35 (collectively, the “iOS 10 Update”); iOS 11.0.16; iOS
11.0.27; iOS 11.0.38; iOS 11.19; iOS 11.1.110; iOS 11.1.211; iOS 11.212; and iOS 11.2.113
(collectively, “iOS 11 Update”).
2. Apple falsely represented to consumers such as the Plaintiffs that iOS 10 and
iOS 11 Updates would increase iPhone performance. However, on December 20,
2017, Apple admitted that it intentionally designed iOS 10 and iOS 11 Updates so as
to limit iPhone performance in certain circumstances. These designs resulted in,
inter alia, slow iPhone performance. These designs also significantly impaired
Plaintiffs’ ability to use their iPhones normally, and prompted consumers such as
the named Plaintiff to purchase new iPhones.
3. Apple’s misrepresentations and omissions severely harmed owners and/or
users of older iPhones.

As a result of installing iOS 10 and iOS 11 Updates, New

York consumers such as the Plaintiffs must either continue using iPhones that
experience severe lag time, which interferes with ordinary use, purchase a new
battery, or purchase a new phone. Plaintiffs would not have purchased an iPhone if
they knew the truth about Apple’s iPhone power management system. Plaintiffs
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would not have updated their older iPhones if they knew that their older iPhones
would experience a severe slowdown that interferes with ordinary use. Plaintiffs
would also not have purchased new phones after installing an iOS update, which
slowed the performance of their older iPhones, if they knew they could remedy the
problem by purchasing a new battery.
4. That, at the time of purchase, Apple failed to disclose to New York consumers,
including the Plaintiffs, issues related to the iPhone battery degradation, and it
failed to make such disclosure at or near the time consumers installed iOS 10 and/or
iOS 11 updates. In addition to the aforesaid omissions of fact, Apple also failed to
inform New York consumers that it throttles iPhone performance through iOS
updates due to battery degradation issues. Apple failed to timely disclose to New
York consumers such as Plaintiff that they could avoid having their older iPhones
throttled by avoiding an iOS update. Defendant also failed to timely disclose to New
York consumers that they could remedy iPhone slowdowns resulting from iOS
updates and battery degradation issues by simply purchasing a new battery.
Instead of making the disclosures, Apple touted the increased iPhone performance
that would result from installing the iOS 10 and/or iOS 11 Updates.
5. These actions and inactions violate the New York General Business Law §349
and §350, et seq., are in direct and material breach of Plaintiffs’ contracts with Apple,
and such acts constitute gross negligence on the part of the Defendant.

3
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE
6. Subject-matter jurisdiction is proper in the Court, and is founded upon 28
U.S.C.§1332(A)(1). The Defendant is a corporation, which is domiciled in the State
of California. The representative Plaintiff is a citizen of New York, and all members
of the proposed class are citizens of New York.
7. Venue in this District is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391. The
representative Plaintiff resides in this District and thousands if not millions of New
York consumers have been injured by Defendant’s violations. A substantial part of
the events or omissions giving rise to Plaintiffs’ claims occurred in this District, and
Apple regularly conducts business in this District.
THE PARTIES
8. Plaintiff Victor Mallh is a citizen of the United States and a resident of Queens
County, New York.
9. The named Plaintiff is a victim of Apple’s actions as alleged herein, including
Defendant’s breach of contract and the willful, reckless, and grossly negligent
conduct.
10. Defendant Apple Inc. is a publicly traded company incorporated under the
laws of the Sate of California, with a principal place of business in that State.
Defendant regularly conducts business in New York.
FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
11. Apple is a publicly traded company that designs, manufactures and markets
mobile communication and media devices and personal computers, and sells a
variety of related software, services, accessories, networking solutions and third4
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party digital content and applications.

The Company’s products and services

include, inter alia, iPhones and services related to iPhones.
12. The iPhone is Apple’s line of smartphones based on its iOS operating system.
iOS is Apple’s mobile operating system that serves as the foundation for iOS devices.
13. Periodically, Apple releases iOS updates. Consumers have no control over
what Apple places into its iOS updates. Apple strongly encourages iPhone users
such as the Plaintiffs to install iOS updates. Apple represents that its iOS updates
will increase iPhone performance. Apple represented that increased iPhone
performance would result from the iOS 10 and iOS 11 Updates. However, Defendant
omitted from Plaintiffs the fact that iOS 10 and 11 Updates could negatively affect
iPhone performance and functionality.
14. On December 20, 2017, Apple admitted that it intentionally designed iOS 10
and iOS 11 Updates to limit iPhone performance in certain circumstances.
15. Prior to December 20, 2017, Apple omitted from Plaintiffs the fact that it
intentionally designed its iOS 10 and 11 Updates to slow down iPhone performance
in older iPhones with degraded batteries.
16. Plaintiffs’

and

other

consumers’

iPhones

experienced

significant

malfunctions shortly after iOS 10 and/or iOS 11 Updates were installed. These
malfunctions include but are not limited to very slow operating speeds, reduced
battery life, slow service especially when using applications (“App” or “Apps”),
delayed responses to touch interactions, screen freezes and freezing Apps such as
text messaging and e-mail, delayed App launches, battery issues such as rapid
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decline in battery power and sudden/random iPhone shutdown/restart, glitches,
and/or random App shutdowns.
17. By concealing the truth as to why older iPhones performed poorly after the
iOS 10 and 11 Updates were installed, Apple led consumers such as the named
Plaintiff to believe that they needed to purchase a new iPhone. Apple could have,
and should have, timely informed consumers that a new battery would repair
malfunctions related to battery degradation in older iPhones. However, Apple chose
to keep their practice of throttling iPhone performance a secret, which led
consumers such as the named Plaintiff to believe that they needed to purchase a
new iPhone.
18. Apple claims that its intentional throttling of performance in older iPhones
was designed to offset problems related to older batteries and iPhone shutdowns.
However, consumers such as the named Plaintiff have experienced battery
malfunctions such as reduced battery life, rapid decline in battery power, and
sudden/random iPhone shutdown since installing the iOS 10 and/or iOS 11 Updates.
19. Instead of being transparent and truthful with consumers regarding issues
related to batteries in iPhones, Apple secretly slowed down the speed of older
iPhones with degraded batteries through iOS 10 and 11 Updates. Apple engaged in
deliberate CPU throttling of older iPhones with degraded batteries through iOS 10
and 11 Updates without first informing iPhone users of the risks involved with
installing such iOS updates, and without giving iPhone users the option to decide on
whether to use the power management techniques/features that Apple
implemented through such iOS updates. Apple could have, and should have, timely
6
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informed Plaintiffs and other consumers about the risks involved with installing iOS
10 and iOS 11 Updates.
20. The Plaintiffs and other consumers cannot and do not control how Apple
designs and implements its iOS updates. Consumers are forced to rely on Apple’s
design choices. Consumers also rely on the information that Apple provides about
its iOS updates. Apple controls when and how iOS updates are implemented, and
consumers are forced to rely on Apple to protect their iPhones. Upon information
and belief, iPhone users cannot revert their iOS software to previous versions of iOS.
Defendant fails to warn consumers that an iOS update is irreversible. Therefore, it
was and it is incumbent upon Apple not only to implement updates that improve
iPhone performance, but also to warn consumers about the risks involved with
installing updates. Apple utterly failed to do this with its iOS 10 and 11 Updates
21. Although installing an iOS update is voluntary in theory, consumers
eventually are forced to update their iPhone software. This is due in large part to
security concerns, but also because the Apps on the iPhones would eventually
become outdated and the iPhone user would not be able to update the App and have
access to the updated App features until the iPhone was running the updated iOS
software.
22. From at least January 23, 2017, Apple has been intentionally limiting older
iPhone performance in certain circumstances through its iOS updates. Although
numerous remedies for iPhone slowdowns were available and known to Apple at all
times, Apple failed to timely inform consumers such as the Plaintiffs of these
remedies or to employ other sufficient compensating measures.
7
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23. Apple negligently, recklessly and willfully waited until December 20, 2017,
which was after Plaintiffs and other consumers installed iOS 10 and/or iOS 11
Updates to their iPhones, to inform consumers that Apple has been intentionally
limiting older iPhone performance in certain circumstances through its iOS updates.
Apple caused the Plaintiffs and others harm by failing to timely inform them about
these practices. Apple subjected Plaintiffs and other consumers to actual injury, as
Plaintiffs were deprived of their opportunity to meaningfully consider and address
issues related to iOS 10 and/or iOS 11 Updates and degraded iPhone batteries.
Apple also caused consumers, including the Plaintiffs, to suffer severe emotional
harm while learning that their iPhones were among those negatively affected by the
iOS 10 and 11 Updates. The named Plaintiff suffered severe emotional harm, among
other times, when his iPhone failed to function properly during critical moments.
24. Apple could have prevented the confusion it created surrounding the iOS 10
and 11 Updates by revealing the full truth about the iOS updates.

By falsely

representing that the iOS 10 and 11 Updates would enhance performance of all
iPhones and by concealing the fact that Defendant intentionally limited the
performance of older iPhones through its iOS 10 and 11 Updates, Apple fraudulently
induced consumers such as the Plaintiffs to install iOS 10 and/or 11 Updates. Apple
was also not forthcoming about how to fix the problems that consumers
experienced after installing the relevant iOS updates, which led consumers such as
the named Plaintiff to believe that they needed to purchase a new iPhone. Apple
could have and should have provided Plaintiffs and other consumers with this
material information, but Apple failed to do so.
8
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25. Plaintiff Victor Mallh purchased an iPhone 6s Plus 64GB on March 30, 2016.
Mr. Mallh began having major issues with this iPhone very shortly after the
purchase. The problems began immediately after Mr. Mallh installed an iOS 10
update to his iPhone. The problems became worse as Mr. Mallh continued to update
his iPhone. Mr. Mallh experienced problems including but not limited to very slow
operating speed, reduced battery life, slow service especially when using
applications, screen freezes and freezing applications such as text messaging and email, freezing and inability to transmit messages and images, battery malfunctions
such

as

rapid

decline

in

battery

power

and

sudden/random

iPhone

shutdown/restart, glitches, and random application shutdown. Mr. Mallh spent a
significant amount of time speaking with T-Mobile customer service representatives
and Apple customer service representatives/tech support in an effort to correct
issues with his iPhone, which, unbeknownst to Mr. Mallh, were intentionally caused
by Apple. This was tremendously inconvenient, and ultimately the malfunctions
with his iPhone 6s Plus were never repaired. Apple advised Mr. Mallh to trade in his
iPhone for a refurbished iPhone to correct the problems. Mr. Mallh followed this
advice and paid the applicable fees, but the problems mentioned above persisted.
These problems significantly interfered with Mr. Mallh’s ordinary use of his iPhone,
which prompted him to become interested in what he believed was a more
advanced iPhone. Mr. Mallh pre-ordered an iPhone X on October 27, 2017. He
received his iPhone X on November 8, 2017. Mr. Mallh decided to purchase the
iPhone X instead of the iPhone 8 because Apple represented it as the top iPhone
model and Mr. Mallh wanted to ensure that his new iPhone would not have the
9
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issues that he dealt with while using the iPhone 6s Plus. Mr. Mallh was not aware
that he could have avoided the issues with his iPhone 6s Plus by declining to install
the relevant iOS update. Mr. Mallh was also unaware that he could have remedied
the issues with his iPhone 6s Plus simply by purchasing a new battery. Apple utterly
failed to inform Mr. Mallh of this information. Mr. Mallh would not have spent
approximately $1,000.00 to purchase the iPhone X if he had known that he could
have repaired the malfunctions associated with his iPhone 6s Plus by purchasing a
new battery. Mr. Mallh would have declined to install the relevant iOS update to his
iPhone 6s Plus if he knew the truth about Apple’s actions and about the risks of
installing the iOS update. In fact, Mr. Mallh would not have purchased an iPhone at
all

if

he

knew

the

truth

about

Apple’s

power

management

system/techniques/features. The Plaintiff would not have purchased an iPhone if
he knew the truth about Apple’s iOS update(s). Additionally, Mr. Mallh experienced
issues with his iPhone while in cold weather. Mr. Mallh would not have purchased
an iPhone, or he would not have paid as much for an iPhone, if he knew the truth
about iPhone performance in cold temperatures. Apple severely harmed Mr. Mallh
by intentionally hiding material information from him. Mr. Mallh suffered monetary
damages as well as severe emotional distress.
26. On December 28th, 2017, Apple announced that it would be reducing the
price of an out-of-warranty iPhone battery replacement from $79.00 to $29.00.
However, this is unhelpful to consumers such as Mr. Mallh who have already
purchased a new iPhone as a result of Apple’s misrepresentations and omissions.
Equally egregious, Apple continues to charge consumers $29.00 to remedy a
10
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problem that Apple created. Apple intentionally hid material information from
consumers such as Plaintiffs, deprived consumers of the ability to make an informed
decision about whether they wanted to update their iPhones and use the power
management techniques/features that Apple implemented, and is now egregiously
charging consumers for a battery replacement. Apple’s willful conduct was and
continues to be motivated by profit for Apple, and it was not designed to protect
consumers.
27. None of the Plaintiffs would have purchased an iPhone had they known that
Apple’s representations regarding iOS update(s) were false and misleading.
28. None of the Plaintiffs would have purchased an iPhone, or they would not
have paid as much money for an iPhone, had they known the truth about Apples
operations, including but not limited to throttling iPhone performance.
29. Apple negligently, recklessly, and willfully prevented Mr. Mallh and class
members from making informed decisions regarding updating their iPhones,
replacing their iPhones, and replacing their iPhone batteries, among other things.
30. This suit is maintainable as a class action. The Plaintiff believes that the class
that he proposes to represent is so numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. The Plaintiff asserts that millions of New York consumers have been,
and are being, impacted by the Defendant’s actions. There are questions of law and
fact common to the class, and the claims of the named Plaintiff are typical of the
claims of the class. The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of
the class.

11
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31. Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23, the Plaintiff brings this class
action and seeks certification of the claims and certain issues in this action on behalf
of a class defined as:
All New York State residents who currently own, currently use, previously
owned, and/or previously used, any of the following: iPhone SE; iPhone 6;
iPhone 6s; and iPhone 6s Plus, which received any of the following updates:
iOS 10.2.1; iOS 10.3; iOS 10.3.1; iOS 10.3.2; iOS 10.3.3; iOS 11.0.1; iOS
11.0.2; iOS 11.0.3; iOS 11.1; iOS 11.1.1; iOS 11.1.2; iOS 11.2; and iOS 11.2.1.
The definition also includes owners and users of iPhones 7 and 7 plus,
which received iOS 11.2 and 11.2.1 Updates.
34. Plaintiff reserves his right to amend the class definition if further
investigation and discovery indicates that the class definition should be narrowed,
expanded, or otherwise modified.
35. Defendant uniformly violated the aforesaid NY GBL Sections as to all
members of the class, including any subclass arising out of the reckless and willful
failure to inform consumers of material information related to their iPhones, such
that the questions of law and fact are common to all members of the class and any
subclass.
36. All members of the class and any subclass were and are similarly affected
by the violations of the law and the relief sought herein is for the benefit of Plaintiffs
and members of the class and any subclass.
COUNT ONE
NYGBL §349 and §350, ET SEQ.
Deceptive Or Misleading Practices
37. The Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporate by reference the allegations set
forth in each preceding paragraph of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein, and
further states:
12

Case 1:18-cv-00051 Document 1 Filed 01/04/18 Page 13 of 18 PageID #: 13

38. For that the Defendant Apple engaged in conduct that was consumer
oriented and did so in a manner, which was materially deceptive and misleading to
consumers, and this conduct caused Plaintiffs harm. By way of example, as to the
named Plaintiff, the Defendant made representations and omissions regarding its
operations that prevented Plaintiff from making an informed decision, fraudulently
induced him to install the relevant iOS updates to his iPhone, caused him to lose
functionality of his iPhone, and ultimately led him to believe that he needed to
purchase an iPhone X, which cost him approximately $1,000.00.
39. The Defendant materially misled the Plaintiffs in the manner discussed
above, including by falsely advertising and falsely representing to Plaintiffs that iOS
10 and iOS 11 Updates would increase their iPhone performance, and by failing to
timely and conspicuously disclose information regarding the risks of installing iOS
10 and 11 Updates.

Defendant advertised in a misleading manner, which

fraudulently induced the named Plaintiff to install the relevant iOS updates, caused
Plaintiff to lose functionality of his iPhone, and ultimately led him to believe that he
needed to purchase an iPhone X.
40. As a result of Defendant’s representations and omissions, Plaintiff
suffered significant losses, including funds expended for a new iPhone, unforeseen
fees, and significant time and effort expended.

Additionally, Plaintiff lost the use

and functionality of an iPhone and suffered severe emotional distress.
41. Apple negligently, recklessly and willfully withheld material information
regarding the iOS 10 and 11 Updates until December 20, 2017.
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COUNT TWO
Breach of Contract
42. The Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set
forth in each preceding paragraph of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein, and
further states:
43. The Defendant, at all the times relevant herein, was under an implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealings, and Apple breached this covenant when it
acted in bad faith and solely for the purpose of profit disregarding the financial and
emotional harm incurred by the Plaintiffs.
44. The Defendant accepted significant funds from Plaintiffs on the promises
that it provide functional products and services, and Apple was under contractual
obligations to provide the Plaintiffs with material information related to their
iPhones and iOS update(s).

The Defendant failed in its obligation to provide

Plaintiffs with this information.
45. The Defendant failed to deliver on its promise to provide Plaintiffs with
the information necessary to keep their iPhones functional for normal use.
46. The Defendant failed to deliver on its promise to provide Plaintiffs with
the information necessary to allow Plaintiffs the opportunity to meaningfully
consider and address issues related to iOS 10 and/or iOS 11 Updates and degraded
iPhone batteries.
47. Defendant breached its agreement with Plaintiff when it failed to provide
him with material information, which fraudulently induced Plaintiff to install the
relevant iOS updates, caused Plaintiff to lose functionality of his iPhone, and
ultimately led him to believe that he needed to purchase an iPhone X.
14
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48. As a result of Defendant’s representations and omissions, the Plaintiff and
similarly situated others suffered significant losses, including but not limited to
funds expended for a new iPhone, unforeseen fees, and significant time and effort
expended. Additionally, Plaintiff lost the use and functionality of an iPhone.
COUNT THREE
NEGLIGENCE
49. The Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set
forth in each preceding paragraph of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein, and
further states:
50.Defendant owed the Plaintiffs duties including but not limited to the
following: the duty to timely warn Plaintiffs that Defendant intentionally limited the
performance of older iPhones through its iOS 10 and 11 Updates; the duty to
disclose to Plaintiffs that Apple intentionally designed its iOS 10 and 11 Updates so
as to slow down iPhone performance in older iPhones with degraded batteries; the
duty to timely warn Plaintiffs that the relevant iOS updates could negatively and
significantly impact iPhone performance; the duty to provide Plaintiffs with the
material information necessary to allow Plaintiffs the opportunity to meaningfully
consider and address issues related to iOS 10 and/or iOS 11 Updates and degraded
iPhone batteries; and the duty to timely inform Plaintiffs of how to repair the
malfunctions that Plaintiffs experienced as a result of installing the relevant iOS
updates, such as informing Plaintiffs that a new battery would improve the
performance of their iPhone.
51. Apple breached its duties to Plaintiffs when it intentionally hid material
information from Plaintiffs and failed to timely warn Plaintiffs of Apple’s practices
15
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and the risks involved with installing the relevant iOS updates. Apple engaged in
deliberate CPU throttling of older iPhones with degraded batteries through iOS 10
and 11 Updates without first informing iPhone users of the risks involved with
installing such iOS updates, and without timely providing Plaintiffs with the
information necessary to allow Plaintiffs the opportunity to meaningfully consider
and address issues related to iOS 10 and/or iOS 11 Updates and degraded iPhone
batteries.
52. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s breach, Plaintiffs suffered
harm in an amount to be determined at trial.
COUNT FOUR
Gross Negligence
53. The Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporate by reference the allegations set
forth in each preceding paragraph of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein, and
further states:
54. That Defendant’s wanton, willful and reckless disregard for the rights of
consumers, its failure to timely provide Plaintiffs with the material information
necessary to meaningfully consider and address issues related to iOS 10 and/or iOS
11 Updates and degraded iPhone batteries, and its failure to warn consumers, or
take other reasonable protective measures, caused the Plaintiff and similarly
situated others significant losses including but not limited to impaired use of older
iPhones, money spent on new iPhones, and severe emotional distress.
55. As a result of Defendant’s gross negligence and wanton, willful and
reckless disregard for the rights of consumers, the Plaintiff and similarly situated
16

Case 1:18-cv-00051 Document 1 Filed 01/04/18 Page 17 of 18 PageID #: 17

others suffered actual harm in the form of impaired use of older iPhones, money
spent on new iPhones, and severe emotional distress.
56. Because Apple’s gross negligence was wanton, willful and in reckless
disregard for the rights of consumers and their iPhones, punitive damages should
also be awarded against Apple in an amount to be awarded at trial.
REQUEST FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, your Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and similarly-situated
Plaintiffs, respectfully prays that this Honorable Court:
!

Order that the Defendant discontinue its violations of New York General
Business Law §349, §350, et. seq. FORTHWITH;

!

Require the Defendant to conspicuously inform consumers before any iOS
update that iOS updates may slow down iPhone performance and explain to
consumers the reasons why the slow down may occur;

!

Require the Defendant to conspicuously inform consumers before any iOS
update that a new battery will remedy iPhone slowdown issues related to
battery degradation;

!

Issue a temporary restraining order barring Apple from charging consumers
for new iPhone batteries;

!

An order certifying the class of New York consumers as defined hereinabove;

!

An order enjoining Apple from engaging in the unlawful violations of the law
complained of herein;

!

An order requiring Apple to promptly notify consumers of any potential
remedy to their iPhone before consumers purchase a new iPhone;

!

An award of actual damages suffered by the Plaintiffs;

!

Order that Defendant refund Plaintiffs for money spent on new phones that
they purchased as a result of Defendant’s actions and inactions;

!

Order that Defendant pay Plaintiffs for all of their emotional distress;
17
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!

An award of punitive damages against Defendant;

!

An award of costs and reasonable attorneys fees; and

!

Any such other and further relief as to this Court may appear just and proper.
JURY TRIAL DEMAND
The Plaintiff respectfully requests a jury trial.
Respectfully Submitted,
THE PLAINTIFFS,
BY:________/s/_______________________
Their Counsel
John Hermina, Esq.
HERMINA LAW GROUP
Laurel Lakes Executive Park
8327 Cherry Lane
Laurel, Maryland 20707
law@herminalaw.com
Tel 301-776-2003
Fax 301-490-7913
Gregory Allen, Esq.
Law Office of Gregory Allen
120 W. Wilson Avenue
Glendale, California 91203
greg@gjallenlaw.com
Tel 203-535-4636

Dated: 01/04/17
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’ 625 Drug Related Seizure
of Property 21 USC 881
’ 690 Other

LABOR
’ 710 Fair Labor Standards
Act
’ 720 Labor/Management
Relations
’ 740 Railway Labor Act
’ 751 Family and Medical
Leave Act
’ 790 Other Labor Litigation
’ 791 Employee Retirement
Income Security Act

BANKRUPTCY
’ 422 Appeal 28 USC 158
’ 423 Withdrawal
28 USC 157
PROPERTY RIGHTS
’ 820 Copyrights
’ 830 Patent
’ 835 Patent - Abbreviated
New Drug Application
’ 840 Trademark
SOCIAL SECURITY
’ 861 HIA (1395ff)
’ 862 Black Lung (923)
’ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))
’ 864 SSID Title XVI
’ 865 RSI (405(g))

FEDERAL TAX SUITS
’ 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff
or Defendant)
’ 871 IRS—Third Party
26 USC 7609

IMMIGRATION
’ 462 Naturalization Application
’ 465 Other Immigration
Actions

OTHER STATUTES
’ 375 False Claims Act
’ 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3729(a))
’ 400 State Reapportionment
’ 410 Antitrust
’ 430 Banks and Banking
’ 450 Commerce
’ 460 Deportation
’ 470 Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations
’ 480 Consumer Credit
’ 490 Cable/Sat TV
’ 850 Securities/Commodities/
Exchange
’ 890 Other Statutory Actions
’ 891 Agricultural Acts
’ 893 Environmental Matters
’ 895 Freedom of Information
Act
’ 896 Arbitration
’ 899 Administrative Procedure
Act/Review or Appeal of
Agency Decision
’ 950 Constitutionality of
State Statutes

V. ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
’ 1 Original
Proceeding

’ 2 Removed from
State Court

’ 3

’ 6 Multidistrict
Litigation Transfer
(specify)
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
Remanded from
Appellate Court

’ 4 Reinstated or
Reopened

’ 5 Transferred from
Another District

’ 8 Multidistrict
Litigation Direct File

28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A)

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION Brief description of cause:

NYGBL §349 and §350, ET SEQ.

’ CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
VII. REQUESTED IN
UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.
COMPLAINT:
VIII. RELATED CASE(S)
(See instructions):
IF ANY
JUDGE
DATE

Deceptive Or Misleading Practices
DEMAND $

100,000,000.00

CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
’ Yes
’ No
JURY DEMAND:

DOCKET NUMBER

SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

John Hermina

01/04/2018
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
RECEIPT #

AMOUNT

Print
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MAG. JUDGE
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet
The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:
I.(a)

(b)

(c)

Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.
County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)
Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

II.

Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X"
in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

III.

Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV.

Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code
that is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V.

Origin. Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 1407.
Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to
changes in statue.

VI.

Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII.

Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.
Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

Eastern District
of of
New
York
__________
District
__________
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

VICTOR MALLH
3017 43rd Street, Apt. 3F
Astoria, New York 11103
Plaintiff(s)

v.
APPLE INC.
1 Infinite Loop
Cupertino, CA 95104
Defendant(s)

Civil Action No. 18-51

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION
To: (Defendant’s name and address)
APPLE INC.
1 Infinite Loop
Cupertino, CA 95104
Serve Upon: CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY

A lawsuit has been filed against you.
Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:
John Hermina
Hermina Law Group
8327 Cherry Lane
Laurel, Maryland 20707

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

DOUGLAS C. PALMER

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action No. 18-51
PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))
This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)
was received by me on (date)

.

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)
on (date)

; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,
on (date)

, and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual)

, who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)
on (date)

; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because

; or

’ Other (specify):
.
My fees are $

for travel and $

for services, for a total of $

0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

Print

Save As...

Reset

.

